
 

Page 1 of 6 
 

ARKANSAS CORN & SORGHUM PROMOTION BOARD MEETING 
Zoom Only 

 
Minutes 

 
April 4th, 2024 

8:30 a.m. 
 
Members Present via Zoom:  Matt Smith, Trent Dabbs, Matt Gammill, Tommy Young, 

Jason Felton & Kenny Falwell 
 
Members Absent:  Jacob Appleberry  
 
Chairman Tommy Young commenced the Arkansas Corn & Grain Sorghum Promotion Board 
meeting at 8:35 a.m. and welcomed all members and guests present on Zoom. A quorum was 
established.  
 
Chairman Young then presented the minutes from the board’s previous meeting held on 
February 21st & 22nd, 2024.  
 
Chairman Young then asked for a motion to approve the previous meeting minutes. 
 
Moved by Falwell, seconded by Dabbs.  
 
Motion carried.  
 
Chairman Young then introduced Mr. Inoussa Zaki from the Arkansas Department of Agriculture 
to present the board’s updated financial report for the period that ended on March 31st, 2024. 
ATTACHMENT 1 
 
Zaki explained to the board that their finances for this period are notably strong compared to his 
somewhat conservative forecast.  
 
Zaki told the board that the total gross collections at the end of March were valued at $1,003,850, 
with $997,167 in gross collections for corn, and $6,682 in gross collections for grain sorghum.  
 
Zaki also told the board that they netted $995,219 during this period, with a total revenue of 
$3,478,234. Zaki valued the board’s total expenditure for this period at $1,347,184.  
 
Zaki also informed the board that they held a reserve fund balance of $894,583, further 
mentioning that he expects this reserve balance to increase to upwards of $900,000 as the fiscal 
year comes to an end over the next few months.  
 
 



 

Page 2 of 6 
 

Chairman Young then asked Zaki if he expected the reserve balance to increase closer to 
$1,000,000 by July, adding that there were likely many corn farmers across the state that may 
have not sold their corn quite yet.  
 
Zaki mentioned that he was working with more conservative numbers in his forecast and 
answered that he does project the reserve to be in the millions by the end of the fiscal year.  
 
Chairman Young then asked for a motion to approve the financial report.  
 
Moved by Falwell, seconded by Dabbs.  
 
Motion carried.  
 
Chairman Young then introduced the next agenda item concerning the proposal from Rebecca 
Lochmann with the University of Arkansas at Pine Bluff, who previously presented at the 
02/22/2024 board meeting on their research project proposal entitled, “Use of Corn Protein 
Concentrate in Plant-Based Diets for Largemouth Bass to Optimize Production Sustainability and 
Profitability.”  
 
Chairman Young briefly recapped what was discussed about this project at the previous board 
meeting, highlighting that the board was interested in whether other additional species of fish 
could be included in the project proposal.  
 
Chairman Young added that he had done some of his own private research on this topic and 
found that largemouth bass is mostly a niche market that exists primarily in Florida, with little to 
no market in Arkansas. Chairman Young mentioned that he personally felt as though the board 
should not fund niche markets of this nature at this time.  
 
Chairman Young then opened the floor for any comments on this discussion.  
 
Member Kenny Falwell added that he thinks the corn farmers of Arkansas would not want to see 
their money spent on research like this, since there would be no direct benefit to them. Some 
discussion ensued.  
 
Member Matt Smith then mentioned that he was not present at the previous board meeting to 
see the full project presentation, but he does see where members Falwell and Young are coming 
from on this topic. Some further discussion ensued.  
 
Chairman Young then asked for a motion not to fund this research project proposal from Rebecca 
Lochmann.  
 
Moved by Smith, seconded by Falwell.  
 
Motion carried.  



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 
Chairman Young then introduced the next agenda item concerning an update report from the 
Deane Robinson Seed Company.  
 
Prior to the presentation on the research project from Deane Robinson Seed Company, Chairman 
Young addressed concerns about the company’s lack of responsiveness to this board, which was 
particularly noted during the previous board meeting held in February.  
 
Chairman Young asked Deane Robinson Seed company if they would like to continue receiving 
funding from this board, and presenter James Watkins indicated that they would like to still 
receive funding from the board, citing apologies and some explanation on behalf of the company.  
 
Chairman Young then asked Watkins who exactly was doing the research, and Watkins answered 
that it was himself and William Johnson. Some discussion ensued.  
 
James Watkins then gave the research project presentation from the Deane Robinson Seed 
Company on “Sequestering Carbon in Corn Production System,” requesting a continued 
proposed funding amount of $18,195. ATTACHMENT 2 
 
Chairman Young then asked if there were any questions.  
 
Member Falwell asked the presenter if he saw any problems with future presentations to the 
board regarding the results of these studies. Watkins answered that he does not foresee any 
further issues in the future and again apologized for the miscommunication. Chairman Young 
provided a brief overview of expectations moving forward and some discussion ensued.  
 
Chairman Young then asked if William Johnson is no longer working on their project, and Watkins 
answered that he is not.  
 
Chairman Young asked Watkins if there were any problems moving forward with Johnson no 
longer working on their research project. Watkins answered that he does not foresee any more 
issues moving forward, further assuring the board.  
 
Chairman Young then asked if there were any further questions and there were none.  
 
Chairman Young then introduced the next agenda item concerning the discussion of continued 
support to the Arkansas Corn & Grain Sorghum Producers Building located on the Jackson County 
Extension Center Campus. 
 
Chairman Young reminded members that during the previous board meeting, there was a 
discussion about allocating $10,000 annually for the general upkeep and maintenance of the AR 
Corn & Grain Sorghum Producers Building. Chairman Young also mentioned that this funding 
commitment is an item that the board will need to address on an annual basis.  
 



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

Chairman Young then requested a motion from the board to approve the continuation of 
providing $10,000 in funding for the current year to the Arkansas Corn & Grain Sorghum 
Producer’s Building situated on the Jackson County Extension Center Campus.  
 
Moved by Falwell, seconded by Felton.  
 
Motion carried.  
 
Chairman Young then introduced Member Falwell to present the report to the board on the 
National Corn Growers Association (NCGA) Corn Congress held at Commodity Classic in Houston, 
TX.  
 
Member Falwell noted that the NCGA was formed in 1957, representing 40,000 dues-paying 
members, and advocating for the interests of over 300,000 corn farmers in the United States. 
Member Falwell further emphasized that the focus of the NCGA is to develop and support the 
implementation of new markets aimed at advancing the corn industry.   
 
Member Falwell provided an overview of discussions held during the NCGA Corn Congress 
meeting, highlighting the contentious issue of mandatory base acre updates for corn growers, 
which was a resolution proposed by northern corn states. This resolution passed during this Corn 
Congress session. Additionally, Member Falwell mentioned that Senator Boozeman’s office 
strongly opposes this mandatory base acre update requirement, noting that Sen. Boozeman is 
the chairman of the U.S. Senate Committee on Agriculture.  
 
Member Falwell then gave his report on the Commodity Classic Conference that was held in 
Houston, TX. He highlighted the conference’s significant scale and noted his enthusiasm for 
witnessing the latest agricultural innovations showcased at the annual trade show.   
 
Member Falwell then asked if there were any questions on his report and there were none.  
 
Chairman Young then provided a brief overview of the Southern States Caucus meeting held 
during Corn Congress. He highlighted a resolution drafted by the Texas Corn Growers Association, 
that would propose voluntary base acre updates with certain caveats, which he deemed more 
reasonable than imposing mandatory base acre requirements. Furthermore, Chairman Young 
mentioned a visit from Sen. Boozeman’s office during the Southern States Caucus meeting, 
where they expressed their inability to support a mandatory base acreage resolution passed by 
the NCGA.  
 
Additionally, Chairman Young underscored the significant influence of market dynamics on 
acreage bases, stressing that imposing a mandatory base acreage requirement for corn farmers 
would not align with the best interests of Arkansas farmers.  
 
Chairman Young and Member Falwell then discussed handheld technology from Leaftech Ag, a 
company they encountered at the Commodity Classic trade show. Leaftech Ag claims to have 



 

Page 5 of 6 
 

handheld technology that will instantaneously provide nutrient content results for corn leaf 
tissue, which is a major departure from the traditional lab sampling and testing associated with 
analysis like this. Member Falwell highlighted the company’s confidence in the efficacy of their 
technology, prompting the desire to present this information and technology to the board. 
ATTACHMENT 3 
 
Chairman Young then raised the topic with Dr. Nathan Slaton from the UofA, suggesting the 
possibility of the corn board purchasing the handheld device. He inquired whether the UofA 
would consider using the purchased device as part of an ad hoc study.  
 
Dr. Slaton responded by expressing that he would like to do a more research on the technology 
and the company itself before agreeing to such a proposition. He noted the prevalence of 
companies making similar claims, cautioning that the technology may not consistently align with 
laboratory analysis results. Dr. Slaton assured the board that he would investigate the matter and 
provide an official recommendation.   
 
Chairman Young then launched into the discussion regarding the board’s summer meetings.  
 
Chairman Young asked Dr. Slaton if he had any recommendations for research stations that he 
feels the board should visit this year.  
 
Dr. Slaton referred to the board’s visit to the Pine Tree Research Station last year, noting its 
extensive corn research activities. He expressed his intention to delve deeper into the board’s 
research projects to provide a recommendation for the board’s next visit.  
 
Additionally, Dr. Slaton explained that he would like to find a date that accommodates everyone’s 
schedules to do such a visit, and assured the board that once a date is determined, that he would 
take charge of coordinating a visit to a research project.  
 
Chairman Young reminded Dr. Slaton of two upcoming meetings scheduled for the summer that 
he should consider: one with the National Corn Growers Association (NCGA) from July 15 – 18, 
2024, and another with the U.S. Grains Council (USGC) from July 29 – 31, 2024.  
 
Chairman Young then initiated the discussion regarding the funding of the Deane Robinson Seed 
Company’s research project.  
  
Member Falwell acknowledged the potential value of the proposed research for the industry but 
expressed reservations about the unknown aspect, particularly regarding Mr. Watkins’ quality of 
work, which is unfamiliar to the board. He noted his higher confidence in the work quality of 
William Johnson, whose work he was more familiar with.  
 
Chairman Young then asked Zaki what the funding amount given to the Deane Robinson Seed 
Company was last year, and Zaki answered that it was $18,195.  
 





ATTACHMENT 1



4/4/2024

1

Sequestering Carbon in Corn 
Production System

William Johnson Jr., Ph.D., CCA and James Watkins, M.S., CCA

Deane Robinson Seed Company

Agronomics

YieldPopulationPlanting DateGrower

Bu/athousands

DKC 246          P 234354/14/2023Morton

DKC 238           P 228343/31/2023Walt

DKC 148           P 213355/4/2023Watkins

DKC 65-99     Pioneer P1718VYHR

1 2

3 4

5 6

ATTACHMENT 2



4/4/2024

2

Sample Analysis

• Waypoint Analytical 

• Total dry weight

• Total combustible carbon

Sequestered Carbon

CarbonGrainCobSilkShuckLeavesStalkRootHybrid

Tons/acre%%%%%%%

9.123.016.10.810.314.122.413.8DKC 65-99

9.223.615.41.09.715.322.812.2P1718VYHR

Carbon Revenue

• James Hansen, retired NASA Scientist
• Proposed a $15/ton tax for carbon emissions

• Proposed a $15/ton tax credit for carbon sequestered

• Corn carbon credit of $150 per acre

7 8

9 10

11 12



4/4/2024

3

13



ATTACHMENT 3






